
Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

Willamina City Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, January 8, 2019, 6:00 pm 

West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St. 

Willamina, OR 97396 

  

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL  

FLAG SALUTE 

AGENDA ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, AND CORRECTIONS  

PUBLIC INPUT – BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE  

Public Input: Presentations not scheduled on the Agenda are limited to three (3) minutes. 
Longer presentations should be submitted to the City Recorder before the meeting. 
Anyone wishing to comment on an item of the Regular Agenda will need to sign in on the 
Sign in form. 

CORRESPONDENCE - none 

PRESENTATIONS  

1. Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde - Community Development Planning 
2. Polk County Cemetery Keepers 
3. West Valley Visioning Project Survey 

 
CONSENT AGENDA   “(A listing of routine business items, which are adopted with one 
motion, without discussion. However, any COUNCILOR may request that an item be pulled 
from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action. The item is then considered 
after the Consent Agenda items have been voted upon).” 

4. Check Registers – November 1 to 30, 2018 (information only) 
5. Financials November 30, 2018 
6. Minutes from the December 11, 2018 City Council Meeting 

 

 



Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

REGULAR AGENDA 

7. Election of Council President  
8. Renewal of Permit for Short-Term Occupancy of a Recreation Vehicle 
9. Regional Emergency Management Planning Grant Application Letter of Support  
10. Ordinance No. 667 - Creation of the Cemetery Committee 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (Items that require no Council action) - none 

MAYORS REPORT 

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

11. Chamber Liaison (Councilor Wooden) 
12. Library Liaison (Vacant) 
13. YCOM Board (Councilor Baller) 
14. Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member (Councilor Johnson) 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS FROM CITY OFFICERS 

15. City Manager 
16. Sheriff’s Report 

 
EVENT CALENDAR- Informational 

PUBLIC HEARING - None 

  
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

































































































1 
 

December 11, 2018 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

City Of Willamina 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the City Council 

December 11, 2018 
6:00 PM 

  
Location of Meeting: 
West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St. 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
Present at Meeting: Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Council President Rita Baller 
Councilor Craig Johnson 
Councilor Bob Burr 
Councilor Ginny Wymore 
Councilor April Wooden 
Councilor Theresa McKnight 
City Manager Kenna West 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
Public Works Director Jeff Brown 
Guest (not limited to):  
News Register Reporter Paul Daliquante 
Harold Leavey 
Roberta Lawson 
James Daley 
Barbara Hoffenbredl 
 
  
The regular meeting of the City Council of City of Willamina was called to order at 6:00 PM 
on December 11, 2018, at West Valley Fire Station by Mayor Ila Skyberg. The flag salute was 
recited. The Deputy City Recorder took the roll call, and a quorum was present. 
  

I. Approval of Agenda 
  
The agenda for the meeting was distributed and unanimously approved with a few comments on 
the elected essentials training flyer. 
  

II. Review of Previous Minutes 
  
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and unanimously approved with corrections. 
  

III. Consideration of Open Issues 
  

1. Agenda Additions, Deletions, And Corrections 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated there were none. 



2 
 

December 11, 2018 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

  
2. Public Input 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg, there was none. 
  

3. Correspondence/Presentation - Elected essential training flyer. 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg asked for a tally of those want to attend the training. 
 
City Manager West commented she would address the elected essentials flyer later in the 
Agenda.  
 
Councilor Wooden responded that she would like to attend the January 23, 2019 training 
in Keizer. Mayor Skyberg also wanted to attend the training. 
 
The City Manager added that the City is working with the Council of Governments, and 
the League of Oregon Cities to bring additional training to the City.  
 

4. Recess- Presentations for City Councilors 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg presented Councilor Wymore with an appreciation plaque for her service 
on Council. Mayor Skyberg thanked Councilor Wymore for accepting the position.   
 
The Mayor then announced a presentation of appreciation for Councilor McKnight and 
presented her with a plaque. The Mayor thanked Councilor McKnight for her years of 
service and professionalism. 
 
Mayor Skyberg asked the council if they would like to recess for refreshments or 
continue. Councilor Baller suggested we continue.  The session continued without a 
recess. 
  

5. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called for a motion. 
 
Councilor Wooden moved for a correction to the minutes. The corrections included 1) 
adding Betty Frownfelter as an Art Tour founder and removing “Mr” Frownfelter; and 2) 
Add the last name to the minutes in regard to the approval of Planning Commissioner 
Debra Jo Summers.    
 
Councilor Johnson moved for a correction to the heading of the minutes of the Special 
Meeting on November 28, 2018. The correction included adding the word “Special” to 
the heading. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to accept the Consent Agenda with the corrections. 
Councilor Burr seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, 



3 
 

December 11, 2018 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

Wymore, Johnson, Wooden, and McKnight all in favor.  
 
Council President Baller then read the items on the consent agenda.  
 
1. Check Register from October 1 to 31, 2018  
2. Financials from October 31, 2018 
3. Minutes from the November 7, 2018 City Council Meeting 
4. Minutes from November 28, 2018 Special City Council Meeting.  
  

6. Regular Agenda - Thank You Letter  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called for a motion. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to approve the attached letter and authorize Mayor 
Skyberg to sign that letter on behalf of the City of Willamina. Councilor Burr seconded 
the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, Wymore, Johnson, Wooden, 
and McKnight all in favor.  
 
Councilor Burr questioned having a thank you letter delayed for a signature until the next 
council meeting instead of having the City Manager or Mayor sign the letter.  
 
The City Manager explained that the letter needs Council approval to be on behlf of the 
City Council.  
  

7. Ordinance No. 676 - An Ordinance Amending Title lX, Chapter 90. Animals, Second 
Reading 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called for a motion. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wymore moved to adopt Ordinance No. 676. Councilor Wooden 
seconded. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, Wymore, Johnson, Wooden, and 
McKnight all in favor.  
 
Mayor Skyberg asked for the second reading of Ordinance No. 676. 
 
The Deputy City Recorder read Ordinance No. 676 in its entirety.  
  

8. Planning Commission Appointments 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg asked for a motion. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to appoint Eric Wagner to the City of Willamina 
Planning Commission for a full term ending December 31, 2021; and reappoint Sheryl 
Hansen and Ila Schunter to a full term ending December 31, 2021. Councilor Wymore 
seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, Wymore, Johnson, 
Wooden, and McKnight all in favor.  



4 
 

December 11, 2018 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

  
9. 2018 Election Results/Oath Of Office 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called for a motion. 
 
Councilor Burr commented that the Polk report listed Councilor Baller as receiving votes.  
Councilor Wooden commented that James Daley is listed in the “totals” section; not Rita 
Baller.  
 
Deputy City Recorder reviewed the votes of each candidate and explained that the 
Council, by motion, accepts the results.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Johnson moved to accept the 2018 Certified Election results. 
Councilor Baller seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, 
Wymore, Johnson, Wooden, and McKnight all in favor.  
 
Deputy City Recorder then asked Mayor Skyberg for permission to give the Oath of 
Office. The Oath was given to Mayor Skyberg, James Daley, Roberta Lawson, and April 
Wooden. 
  

10. Mayors Report 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg reported she attended several meetings including the Polk County 
Elected Officials Breakfast Meeting at the end of November; The Meet and Greet for the 
Fire Chief candidates at the West Valley Fire Station; and She met with Denise Beacon 
from the Ford Foundation who talked to several people in town and interviewed them to 
ask what they thought of the Ford Family Foundation as a whole.  
 

11. Chamber Liaison Report 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called upon Councilor Wooden for her report.   
Councilor Wooden reported that the Chamber is still working on the placement of the 
second saw blade sign which will be located at Coastal Fiber; the Christmas lights went 
up on December 18, 2018; President Don Sheldon attended an active shooter workshop; 
and She attended the Meet and Greet at the West Valley Fire Station. 

  
12. Library Liaison  

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg asked for the library liaison report. Councilor McKnight reported that the 
library is doing great and is very active. She commented there is something going on all 
the time.  

 
13. YCOM Board 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg asked for the YCOM Board.  
Councilor Baller commented she was unable to attend the last meeting.  



5 
 

December 11, 2018 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

 
14. Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member Report 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called up Councilor Johnson.  
Councilor Johnson reported that the next meeting is scheduled for January 2019.  
 

15. City Manager Report 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
The City Manager praised the City staff. The detailed report highlighted each staff skills, 
assets, and accomplishments for 2018. She told Council she was very proud of her team 
and all that they completed as a team. The City Manager concluded her report by 
providing Council with the details and totals on all the Grants received during the year 
which totaled $221,608.  

  
IV. Agenda and Time of Next Meeting 

  
The next meeting will be held at 6:00 PM on January 8, 2019, at:  
West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St. 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
   
The meeting was adjourned at 7:10 PM by Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
  
Minutes submitted by Deputy City Recorder, Debbie Bernard 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
  
Minutes approved by Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JANUARY 8, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: KENNA WEST, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ELECTION OF COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
  
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall the City Council elect a Council President to serve from January 8, 2019 through the first City 
Council meeting of 2021? 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
City Council should elect a Council President to serve from January 8, 2019 through the first City 
Council meeting of 2021. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
Chapter IV at Section 18 of the City of Willamina City Charter provides that the City Council shall 
elect a Council President from amongst its membership at the first meeting of each odd-numbered 
year. 
 
This is the first meeting of the Willamina City Council for the year 2019 (an odd-numbered year); 
and, thus an election of the Council President is required by the City of Willamina Charter. 
 
The newly elected Council President will serve from this date through the first City Council meeting 
of 2021. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 
 

1. The Willamina City Charter provides that a Council President shall be elected at the first 
City Council meeting of each odd-numbered year.  Chapter IV, Section 18. 
 

2. This is the first City Council meeting for the year 2019 (an odd-numbered year); and, 
thus an election of the Council President is required. 

 
3. The elected Council President will serve from January 8, 2019 through the first City 

Council meeting of 2021. 
 
Proposed Motion:  I move to elect __________________ as Council President for the City Council 

of the City of Willamina.  
 
      
      ________________________________________ 
      Kenna L. West, City Manager 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JANUARY 8, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: COMMUNITY CODE AND SUPPORT DEPARTMENT through KENNA WEST, 

CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: RENEWAL OF PERMIT FOR SHORT-TERM OCCUPANCY OF A 

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE. 
  
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall City Council approve the renewal of a permit for short-term occupancy (90 days) of a 
recreational vehicle and authorize City Manager to, in the future, administratively renew said 
permit? 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the renewal of a permit for short-term occupancy of a recreational vehicle and authorize 
City Manager to administratively renew said permit. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
Chapter 96 of the City of Willamina Code of Ordinances at §96.02(C) provides the City Manager 
with the authority to grant a permit to occupy a recreational vehicle for a period not to exceed 
ninety (90) days when the applicant can provide evidence of hardship necessitating such a permit.   
 
The owners of the property located at 330 Jackson Street, in the city limits of the City of Willamina, 
requested such a permit for one of the owner’s father to reside in a recreational vehicle parked in 
the home’s driveway.  The Community Support and Code Officer reviewed the location, took 
pictures of the proposed parking area, and interviewed the homeowner.  The homeowner 
confirmed that her father would be living in the recreational vehicle so that she could assist him in 
his fight against bladder cancer.  He was receiving care from the Veteran’s Administration in 
Portland in regard this cancer.  It was recommended by his physicians that he reside close to a 
caretaker due to his need for assistance.  The location of the recreational vehicle is at the back of 
the homeowner’s driveway, well screened from neighboring property and street view, yet within 
steps of the homeowner’s side door for ease of access.  Based on the above circumstances the 
City Manager granted a 90 day permit to reside in the recreational vehicle.  The allowed 90 days 
has now expired and the homeowner requests an extension. 
 
Chapter 96 of the City of Willamina Code of Ordinances does not provide a process for the renewal 
of the permit; therefore, this matter is being brought to the City Council for their review and 
determination.  The homeowner has provided the following additional information: 
 
 Her father continues to be treated by the Veteran’s Administration in Portland.  The 
 cancer has now spread from his bladder to his bloodstream.  He will be undergoing an 
 additional operation in the near future in treatment of a condition which has  
 developed secondary to the spreading cancer.   
 
 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of January 8, 2019 
Page 2 
 
The City of Willamina Community Support and Code Officer has provided the following additional 
information: 
 
 The recreational vehicle has been at the location for 90 days.  It has been well  
 maintained and is well-screened from the neighbors and street traffic.  The neighbors 
 have no complaints regarding the recreational vehicle and, in fact, have commented 
 that they like the homeowner’s father who resides in that recreational vehicle. 
 
Based on the above facts, the Community Support and Code Officer and City Manager 
recommend that the City Council approve the renewal of a permit for short-term occupancy (90 
days) of a recreational vehicle as currently sited on the property at 330 Jackson Street 
 
In addition, as the homeowner’s father’s condition has exacerbated and his prognosis is somewhat 
uncertain due to the newly diagnosed spread of the cancer, it is requested that the City Council 
provide the City Manager with the authority to administratively renew such permit in 90 day 
increments, should such renewal(s) be requested and should there be, based on the City’s 
investigation, evidence of hardship necessitating such a renewal. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 
 

1. The homeowner at 330 Jackson Street in Willamina requested and received a 90 day 
permit for her father to reside in a recreational vehicle parked in her driveway. 
 

2. This permit was issued based upon the need of the homeowner’s father for a caregiver 
in regard to his bladder cancer and on-going treatment which is being provided by the 
Veteran’s Hospital in Portland. 

 
3. The homeowner sited the recreational vehicle in a location well-screened from their 

neighbor’s and street view.  There have been no complaints in regard to this 
recreational vehicle. 

 
4. The current 90 day permit has expired and the homeowner would like to extend that 

permit as they have recently received information that the cancer has spread to her 
father’s bloodstream and that he will be undergoing an operation in the near future 
requiring significant after care from a caregiver. 

 
5. There is no mechanism or process for the renewal of the 90 day permit within the City 

of Willamina code; therefore the City Council is being asked to review and decide upon 
whether to approve such a renewal. 

 
6. Should the City Council authorize renewal of the permit; it is further requested that, due 

to the on-going need for care, and uncertain prognosis, that the City Council authorize 
the City Manager to issue additional 90 day permits as long as there is evidence of a 
continued hardship necessitating such renewals. 

 
Proposed Motion:  I move to approve the renewal of a permit for short-term occupancy of a 

recreational vehicle located at 330 Jackson Street and authorization for the City Manager to 
administratively renew said permit should such a request be submitted in the future. 

 
      
      ________________________________________ 
      Kenna L. West, City Manager 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JANUARY 8, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: KENNA WEST, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: REGIONAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLANNING GRANT APPLICATION 

LETTER OF SUPPORT 
  
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall City Council approve the attached letter in support of the Confederated Tribes of Grand 
Ronde’s (The Tribe) regional emergency planning grant application, and authorize Mayor Skyberg 
to sign that letter on behalf of the City of Willamina? 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the attached letter and authorize Mayor Skyberg to sign it on behalf of the City of 
Willamina. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
The Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Emergency Management Department, the City of 
Willamina, the Yamhill County Emergency Management Department, and the West Valley Fire 
District have created a regional emergency management committee to assess and address 
potential emergency situations within the West Valley Region.  During this assessment, it has 
become clear that the West Valley region which includes, among others, The Tribe, The City of 
Willamina, and surrounding rural areas is unique in its inability to access assistance should there 
be a large-scale emergency situation.  Therefore, this region must have a well formed Emergency 
Management Plan in place to best serve our communities. 
 
The Emergency Management Department of The Tribe is considering applying for a federally 
funded grant to prepare such a Regional Emergency Management Plan.  The Tribe has not yet 
been asked to authorize the application of this grant; however, the timeline for application is very 
short, and there is some risk that the attached letter could not be brought to the City of Willamina 
City Council in time, should approval be received from The Tribe.  Therefore, the City of Willamina 
management requests preemptive review of the attached letter.  
 
Should the attached letter meet with the Council’s approval, and the Mayor is authorized to sign on 
behalf of the City of Willamina, the signed letter will be provided to The Tribe’s Emergency 
Management Department for their use, should approval to proceed with the grant application be 
given.  
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 
 

1. In a joint and collaborative effort, The Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde, the City of 
Willamina, Yamhill County, and the West Valley Fire District have formed a regional 
emergency management committee. 
 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of January 8, 2019 
Page 2 
 

2. That committee has assessed the potential threat to the West Valley Region should 
there be a large scale emergency and determined that the region is in need of a 
Regional Emergency Management Plan. 

 
3. The Tribe’s Emergency Management Department is considering an application for 

federal funding for such a plan. 
 

4. Should The Tribe provide authority for that application, the timeline for application is 
very short with a significant risk that a letter of support from the City may not be 
available prior to the date the application closes.   

 
5. The attached letter, if approved, will be signed by Mayor Skyberg and provided to The 

Tribe’s Emergency Management Department for their use, should they be authorized to 
apply for the grant funds. 

 
Proposed Motion:  I move to approve the attached letter and authorize Mayor Skyberg to sign 
that letter on behalf of the City of Willamina. 
 
     
      ________________________________________ 
      Kenna L. West, City Manager 
 
Attachment A:  Emergency Management Planning Grant Support Letter 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JANUARY 8, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: WILLAMINA HISTORIC CEMETERY COMMITTEE (AD HOC) through KENNA 

WEST, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ESTABLISHMENT OF THE WILLAMINA HISTORIC CEMETERY COMMITTEE 

(STANDING COMMITTEE) 
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall City Council approve Ordinance No. 677 creating the Willamina Historic Cemetery 
Committee and, if approved, accept the proposed by-laws? 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Ordinance No. 677 creating the Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee and accept 
the proposed by-laws. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Willamina previously accepted the donation of the Willamina Historic Cemetery 
(hereinafter Cemetery) from the prior owners.  Since that time, the City has maintained an “ad 
hoc” committee to continue the operations of the Cemetery and review relevant matters.  There 
are significant issues upcoming in relation to the Cemetery resulting in the need for the creation 
of a City recognized standing committee for the Willamina Historic Cemetery. 
 
A meeting of the ad hoc Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee was held on December 10, 
2018, at which time the attached organizational document and by-laws were reviewed, revised, 
and voted upon for submission to the City Council.  It was recommended by this ad hoc 
Committee that the attached organizational document and by-laws be submitted to the City of 
Willamina City Council for review, and if appropriate, approval and/or acceptance. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 
 
1. The City of Willamina previously accepted the ownership of the Willamina Historic 

Cemetery.    
 
2. An “ad hoc” Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee was formed to continue the 

operations of the Cemetery and address relevant matters. 
 
3. There are significant issues upcoming which need to be decided in regard to the 

Cemetery and a formal standing advisory committee is necessary for the continued 
efficient operation of the Cemetery. 

 
4. The current “ad hoc” Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee has approved and 

recommended the attached documents for approval and/or acceptance by the City 
Council, should the Council so move. 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of January 8, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
Proposed Motion:  I move to approve Ordinance 677 and accept the attached by-laws for the 

Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Kenna L. West, City Manager 
 
Attachments: 

A. City of Willamina Ordinance 677 with Exhibit A 
B. Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee By-Laws 



ORDINANCE NO. 677 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILLAMINA CREATING TITLE III, CHAPTER 

31, SECTIONS 31.40 THROUGH 31.46 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Willamina finds it necessary to 

establish a Cemetery Committee to provide input and act in an advisory capacity to 

the Council regarding the Willamina Historic Cemetery, and 

WHEREAS, The City of Willamina Code of Ordinances, Title III, Chapter 31, 

addresses City Organizations; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WILLAMINA, OREGON ORDAINS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  The City of Willamina Code of Ordinances, Title III, Chapter 31, 

City Organizations is hereby amended to include Sections 31.40 through 31.46, 

which is set forth as Exhibit A, attached hereto. 

 SECTION 2. Severability.  The sections, subsections, paragraphs and 

clauses of this ordinance are severable.  The invalidity of one section, subsection, 

paragraph, or clause shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, 

subsections, paragraphs, or clauses. 

 SECTION 3. Codification.  Provisions of this Ordinance shall be 

incorporated into the City Code and the word “Ordinance” may be changed to 

“code”, “article”, “section”, “chapter”, or other word, and the sections of this 

Ordinance may be renumbered, or re-lettered, provided however that any 

“Whereas” clauses and boilerplate provisions (i.e. Section 2) need not be codified 

and the City Recorder is authorized to correct any cross-references and any 

typographical errors. 

 SECTION 4.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty 

(30) days after adoption. 

 The foregoing Ordinance was first read into the record in full and then by title 

and passed by a unanimous vote of all council members in accordance with 



Chapter VIII, Section 30-31 of the City Charter on the _____ day of ______, 2019, 

and duly PASSED and ADOPTED this _____ day of _________, 2019, by the 

following votes: 

Mayor Skyberg:  __________ 

Councilor Wooden: _________ 

Councilor Lawson: _________ 

Councilor Baller: _________ 

Councilor Burr: _________ 

Councilor Johnson: ________ 

Councilor Daley: _________ 

  

Duly adopted by the City Council this ____ day of _______, 2019. 

 

      _______________________________ 
      Ila Skyberg, Mayor 
  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________ 
Deputy City Recorder 
 
 

 
 



WILLAMINA HISTORIC CEMETERY COMMITTEE 

 

§ 31.40  DEFINITIONS 

As used in § 31.40 to § 31.46, 

(A) The term “Cemetery” means the Willamina Historic Cemetery; 
 

(B) The term “City” means the City of Willamina;  
 
(C) The term “Committee” means the Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee; and 
 
(D) The term “term” shall mean a timeframe of three years beginning January 1st of the first 

year and ending December 31st of the third year. 

§ 31.41  CEMETERY COMMITTEE ESTABLISHED 

 A Cemetery Committee is hereby created and shall be named “Willamina Historic Cemetery 
Committee”. 

§ 31.42  COMPOSITION; APPOINTMENT AND TERM OF MEMBERS 

(A) The Committee shall consist of up to seven voting members appointed by the Mayor; 
 

(B) Committee terms shall be staggered so that not more than two terms shall expire in any one 
year; 

a. The first official Committee membership may have a member with a term that 
exceeds three years in order to allow for staggered terms as required by §31.42.  
There shall, otherwise, be no term upon the Committee which exceeds three years. 

 
(C) No member shall serve more than two consecutive full terms; 

 
(D) Members shall be chosen from among such persons concerned with and interested in the 

Willamina Historic Cemetery, the history of Willamina and its citizens, and/or historic 
cemeteries in general; 

 
(E) At least five members shall be residents of or have their places of business in the City; 
 
(F) Up to two members may be non-residents who have shown an interest in and dedication to 

the City, the Willamina Historic Cemetery, historic cemeteries, or cemeteries in general; 
 
(G) One of the seven members shall be a member of the Willamina Museum of Local History 

Board, Foundation or Membership; 
 
(H) A City employee shall be appointed as a non-voting liaison to the Committee by the City 

Manager; and 



 
(I) In the case of a vacancy, the Mayor shall appoint a successor to complete the unexpired 

term, if any.  A Committee position becomes vacant upon a member’s: 
(1) Death; 
(2) Resignation from office; 
(3) Term expiration; or 
(4) Non-attendance of more than two consecutive meetings for reasons other than 

illness or emergency and upon a concurrence of a quorum of the Committee that 
the member’s position shall be deemed vacant due to non-attendance. 

§ 31.43 COMPENSATION OF MEMBERS 

 The members of the Committee shall not receive any compensation for their services. 

§ 31.44  ORGANIZATION 

(A) The Committee shall establish the time and place of meetings which shall be open to the 
public, and shall adopt bylaws for the conduct of its business consistent with the Charter 
and this Code; 
 

(B) The Committee shall annually elect a chairman, vice-chairman, and secretary; 
 
(C) A quorum shall be a simple majority of the number of filled positions on the Committee; 
 
(D) At least once per year, the Committee shall present to the City Council a report of the 

activities of the Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee including, but not limited to: 
a. The number of gravesites or plots sold; 
b. Any grants or other funds received for the year and how those grants or funds were, 

or will be used; 
c. The Committee’s progress toward completion of the Willamina Historic Cemetery 

comprehensive plan; 
d. Any other information pertinent to the Willamina Historic Cemetery, its upkeep, or 

its future. 

§ 31.45  MEETING PLACE 

 The City Manager shall make available to the Committee a convenient meeting place. 

§ 31.46  FUNCTION AND DUTIES 

 It shall be the function of the Committee to act as an advisory to the City Council and it shall 
have the following duties: 

(A) To prepare and propose to the City Council policies regarding the fees to be charged for 
gravesites, plots, and services for the Cemetery; 
 

(B) To propose capital improvement projects and methods of financing the same; 
 



(C) To propose regulations, if needed, concerning maintenance of records and the duties of the 
Sexton; 

 
(D) To make other recommendations, when requested by the City Council, or City Manager, on 

any issue, policy or proposal concerning the Cemetery; and 
 

(E) Each member of the Committee independently and as a group shall act in the best interests 
of the City and its citizens to maintain and preserve the historical, cultural, and physical well-
being of the Cemetery. 

 

 



 
1 BYLAWS OF THE WILLAMINA HISTORIC CEMETERY COMMITTEE 

WILLAMINA HISTORIC CEMETERY COMMITTEE 

BY-LAWS 

Authorized by Chapter 31 of the Willamina Code of Ordinances 

 

I. COMMITTEE COMPOSITION AND TERMS 

The Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee (Committee) was established by the Willamina 
City Council through Ordinance No. 677, codified within Chapter 31 of the Willamina Code of 
Ordinances.  The number of committee members and qualifications for membership are set 
forth within Chapter 31 of the Willamina Code of Ordinances as may be amended. 

II. OFFICERS 
a. At its regular meeting in January, the Committee shall elect a chair, vice-chair, and 

secretary from among the members willing and able to serve. 
 

b. Chair. The Chair shall act as Presiding Officer at all meetings of the Committee.  The Chair 
shall have all duties and privileges of any Committee member, and shall not be denied any 
right or privilege by reason of the Chair’s position as Presiding Officer. 

 
c. Vice-Chair. In the event of the Chair’s absence from any Committee meeting, the Vice-

Chair shall act as the Presiding Officer.  Whenever the Chair is unable, on account of 
absence, illness, recusal, or other cause, to perform the functions of the office, the Vice-
Chair shall act as Chair Pro-Tem. 

 
d. Secretary. The Secretary shall act as the recorder for the meetings and in coordination 

with the City employee liaison shall make certain that all meetings are properly noticed, 
minutes are taken, and records kept in accordance with the pertinent public meeting laws 
of the State of Oregon. 

 
e. Term. A Committee member may serve a maximum of two successive full terms, and may 

serve an unlimited number of non-successive terms. 
 

f. Privileges Not Affected by Status.  The Presiding Officer may move, second, and debate 
from the Chair, subject only to such limitations of debate as are by these rules imposed 
on all members, and shall not be deprived of any of the rights and privileges of a 
Committee member by reason of acting as the Presiding Officer. 

 
III. REGULAR MEETINGS 

The Committee shall hold meetings at such time as it shall determine.  Those meetings shall 
be open to the public and shall be noticed and held in accordance with the public meeting 
laws of the State of Oregon.  In December the Committee shall develop a tentative work plan 
for the following calendar year commencing January 1st.  Annually, in January, the Committee 
shall adopt a meeting schedule for the following year. 

 



 
2 BYLAWS OF THE WILLAMINA HISTORIC CEMETERY COMMITTEE 

IV. SPECIAL MEETINGS 

Special meetings may be called by the Chair of the Committee, the City Manager, or the City 
Manager’s designee.  Special meetings shall be open to the public and shall be noticed and 
held in accordance with the public meeting laws of the State of Oregon. 

V. QUORUM 

A quorum shall be a simple majority of the number of filled positions on the Committee.  A 
quorum is necessary to transact business.  A majority vote of the members present shall be 
required to carry a motion, proposal, or resolution. 

VI. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS 

If a member of the Committee fails to attend more than two consecutive meetings for 
reasons other than illness or emergency then, upon a concurrence of a quorum of the 
Committee, that member’s position shall be deemed vacant due to non-attendance. 

VII. DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS OF THE Committee 

The duties and functions of the Committee are set forth in Willamina Code of Ordinances 
§31.46. 

VIII. SUBCOMMITTEES 

Subcommittees may be formed by the Committee on an as-needed basis.  Each 
subcommittee shall consist of at least two members of the Committee.  Annually, in February, 
the Committee shall review and establish the goals and objectives of each subcommittee for 
the following year, and modify, eliminate, or continue each subcommittee. 

IX. PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURES 

The most current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order, revised, shall govern procedures of the 
Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee at its regular and special meetings. 

X. VOTING 
a. For those actions proposed by the Chair, unanimous consent shall have the effect of a 

motion duly carried without the necessity of a formal vote. 
 

b. The action of the majority vote of the Committee shall be deemed the position of the 
Board as a whole and shall be carried forward as such to the City Council. 

 
c. If a member disagrees with the Committee position and wishes to express that opposition 

to the City Council, as a courtesy, the Committee Chair and the City Manager shall  be 
notified prior to the member’s attendance at City Council. 

 
d. When the Chair of the Committee is in the minority, as a courtesy, the Chair may appoint 

a member of the Committee to carry and present the position of the majority to the City 
Council. 

 
 



 
3 BYLAWS OF THE WILLAMINA HISTORIC CEMETERY COMMITTEE 

 
 

XI. COMMUNICATIONS  
a. Agendas of the Committee will be sent via email to members, the City employee liaison, 

the City Manager, and any other individuals or groups who have so requested.  The 
agenda shall also be available in print form upon request. 
 

b. All written communications to outside groups shall be sent out by the City of Willamina 
and only after review and approval by the City Manager or the City Manager’s designee. 

 
c. Under no circumstances shall any member take any action or make any statement 

committing, or acting on behalf of the Committee as a whole unless given authority to so 
by a vote of the Committee or as the City Manager’s designee. 

 
d. Official actions of the Committee or recommendations to the City Council shall be 

forwarded directly to the City Council with a copy to the City Manager. 
 

XII. AMENDMENTS 

These Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the Committee by a majority vote, 
provided that at least ten days’ prior notice is given to the members.  The Willamina Historic 
Cemetery Committee has no authority to amend, modify, or delete any rule, regulation, or 
ordinance established by the City Council or the Charter of the City of Willamina. 

 

Signed this _________ day of _______________, 2019 

 

 

___________________________________    
_________________________, Chair  

 
 
Approved and signed this _____________ day of _______________, 2019 
 
 
 
_______________________________________   
Ila Skyberg, Mayor      
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kenna L. West, City Manager 



    City     UCR Description 1/1/2017 to 
12/31/2017

1/1/2018 to 
12/31/2018

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Part 1

Aggravated Assault                 10 5 -50.00 % 5 10

Arson                              1 4 300.00 % 4 1

Burglary-Business                  1 3 200.00 % 3 1

Burglary-Non-Residence             6 4 -33.33 % 4 6

Burglary-Residence                 7 6 -14.29 % 6 7

Larceny                            52 65 25.00 % 65 52

Motor Vehicle Theft-Auto           5 3 -40.00 % 3 5

Murder                             0 1 1

Rape                               0 1 1

Robbery                            0 1 1

Part 1 Total 82 93 11.83 % 93 82

Part 2

All Other                          14 11 -21.43 % 11 14

Animal Problems                    1 1 1 1

Disorderly Conduct                 14 10 -28.57 % 10 14

Drug Laws                          33 21 -36.36 % 21 33

DUII                               10 4 -60.00 % 4 10

Forgery                            1 5 400.00 % 5 1

Fraud                              6 1 -83.33 % 1 6

Kidnapping                         0 1 1

Liquor Laws                        3 3 3 3

Runaway                            3 4 33.33 % 4 3

Sex Offenses                       13 5 -61.54 % 5 13

Simple Assault                     34 35 2.94 % 35 34

Stolen Property                    3 1 -66.67 % 1 3

Tresspass/Prowler                  15 14 -6.67 % 14 15

Vandalism                          24 33 37.50 % 33 24

Total For WILLAMINA 507 519 2.31 % 519 507

Report run date: 1/2/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 1/1/2018 to 12/31/2018



    City     UCR Description 1/1/2017 to 
12/31/2017

1/1/2018 to 
12/31/2018

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Weapons                            3 0 3

Part 2 Total 177 149 -15.82 % 149 177

Part 3

All Other                          97 99 2.06 % 99 97

Non-Reportable Offenses            151 178 17.88 % 178 151

Part 3 Total 248 277 10.47 % 277 248

Total For WILLAMINA 507 519 2.31 % 519 507

Report run date: 1/2/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 1/1/2018 to 12/31/2018



   

January
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 01/01/19 (Tue) New Year's Day -City Hall is Closed holiday

1 2 3 4 5 01/01/19 (Tue) Planning Commission - Canceled holiday
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 01/8/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 01/21/19 (Mon) Martin Luther King Jr. Day - City Hall is Closed holiday
20 21 22 23 24 25 26    - 
27 28 29 30 31    - 

February
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 02/02/19 (Sat) Groundhog Day holiday

1 2 02/05/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 02/12/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 02/12/19 (Tue) Lincoln's Birthday holiday
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 02/14/19 (Thu) Valentines Day holiday
24 25 26 27 28 02/18/19 (Mon) President's Day - City Hall is Closed holiday

Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 2 March

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 03/05/19 (Tue) Plannng Commission Rgular Meeting meeting
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 03/10/19 (Sun) Daylight Saving (move clocks ahead 1 hour) event
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 03/12/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 03/17/19 (Sun) St. Patrick's Day holiday
31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa April
1 2 3 4 5 6 04/01/19 (Mon) April Fool's Day holiday

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 04/02/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 04/10/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 04/15/19 (Mon) SEI Filing Deadline - Ethics Comission Filing deadline
28 29 30 31 04/22/19 (Mon) Earth Day holiday

May
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 05/07/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

1 2 3 4 05/14/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 05/12/19 (Sun) Mother's Day holiday

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 05/27/19 (Mon) Memorial Day - City Hall is Closed holiday
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

May 2019

January 2019

Yearly Schedule of Events

February 2019

March 2019

April 2019

CITY OF WILLAMNA CITY COUNCIL 


	1. 2019.01.08.CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
	1.a.CONSENT AGENDA
	2. 11-30-18 Check Register
	3. 11-30-18 Financial Statements
	4. 2018.12.11.CITY COUNCIL REG MTG MINUTES.edited
	5. REGULAR AGENDA
	5.a.1.Staff Report_Council President Election_2019
	5.a.2.Staff Report_Permit Renewal 330 Jackson_January 8 2019
	5.a.Staff Report_Grant Support Letter.Emergency Management_January 8 2019
	5.b.Staff Report_Willamina Cemetery  Committee.Standing_January 8, 2019
	5.c.Ordinance No 677_Creation of Cemetery Committee_January 8 2019
	5.e.DRAFT ORDINANCE_04.18.2018
	5.f.DRAFT BYLAWS_04.18.2018
	19. Crime Stats by City
	21.2019 yearly_schedule_of_events
	Schedule
	Help
	©


